
 

 

For all enquiries relating to this agenda please contact Charlotte Evans 
 (Tel: 01443 864210   Email: evansca1@caerphilly.gov.uk) 

 
Date: 22nd February 2017 

 
 
 
 
Dear Sir/Madam, 
 
A meeting of the Cabinet will be held in the Sirhowy Room, Penallta House, Tredomen, Ystrad 
Mynach on Wednesday, 1st March, 2017 at 2.00 pm to consider the matters contained in the following 
agenda. 
 

Yours faithfully, 

 
Chris Burns 

INTERIM CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 

A G E N D A 
 

Pages 
  

1  To receive apologies for absence.  
 

 
2  Declarations of Interest.  

 
 
Councillors and Officers are reminded of their personal responsibility to declare any personal 
and/or prejudicial interest(s) in respect of any item of business on the agenda in accordance 
with the Local Government Act 2000, the Council's Constitution and the Code of Conduct for 
both Councillors and Officers.   

 
To approve and sign the following minutes: -  
 
3  Special Cabinet held on 31st January 2017.  

1 - 4 
 

Public Document Pack



 

 

4  Cabinet held on 15th February 2017.  
5 - 10 

 
To receive and consider the following reports on which executive decisions are required: -   
 
5  Junior and Youth Forum Priorities 2017.  

11 - 16 
 

To receive and consider the following report, which requires a recommendation to Council:- 
 
6  Well Being Objectives 2017/18.  

17 - 44 
 

 
Circulation: 
Councillors D. Havard, Mrs C. Forehead, N. George, D.T. Hardacre, K. James, Mrs B. A. Jones, 
D.V. Poole, K.V. Reynolds, T.J. Williams and R. Woodyatt,  
 
And Appropriate Officers. 



1 
 

 

 

 
SPECIAL MEETING OF CABINET 

 

MINUTES OF THE SPECIAL MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE, 
TREDOMEN ON TUESDAY 31ST JANUARY, 2017 AT 2.00 P.M. 

 

 
PRESENT: 

 
Councillor K.V. Reynolds - Chair 

 
Councillors: 

 
 Mrs C. Forehead (HR and Governance/Business Manager), N. George (Community and 

Leisure Services), D. Hardacre (Performance and Asset Management), D. Havard  (Education 
and Lifelong learning), K. James (Regeneration, Planning and Sustainable Development), Mrs 
B. Jones (Corporate Services) D.V. Poole (Deputy Leader and Cabinet Member for Housing), 
T.J. Williams (Highways, Transportation and Engineering), R. Woodyatt (Social Services) 

 
 

Together with: 
 
 C. Burns (Interim Chief Executive), N. Scammell (Acting Director of Corporate Services and 

Section 151 Officer), C. Harrhy (Corporate Director - Communities) 
 

Also in Attendance: 
 

 G. Williams (Interim Head of Legal Services), H. Morgan (Senior Committee Clerk) 
 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 
 An apology for absence was received from D. Street, Corporate Director Social Services. 
 
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 There were no declarations of interest received at the beginning or during the course of the 
 meeting. 
 
 

3. CARDIFF CAPITAL REGION CITY DEAL (CRR CITY DEAL) 
 

 Consideration was given to the report which provided an update on the progress made since 
the last report to Council and sought approval for the formal establishment of the Cardiff 
Capital Region City Deal (CCR City Deal) Joint Committee (which will oversee the region’s 
economic growth agenda and delivery of the twenty year CCR City Deal). It also sought 
approval for the CCR City Deal Joint Working Agreement, the CCR City Deal Assurance 
Framework and Implementation Plan, which are required to establish the Regional Cabinet 
and the City Deal Investment Fund. 

  

Page 1

Agenda Item 3



2 
 

 The Interim Chief Executive gave an overview of the report and referred to the requirement to 
consider the formal establishment of the CCR Joint Cabinet and associated documentation,  
which will enable the commencement of a programme of economic growth across the region 
through the 20 year CCR City Deal. He advised that the City Deal provides an opportunity to 
continue tackling the area’s barriers to economic growth by improving transport connectivity, 
increasing skill levels still further, supporting people into work and giving businesses the 
support they need to innovate and grow. 

 
 The establishment of a Capital Region Cabinet will be the first step in the development of 

greater city-region governance across the Cardiff Capital Region. The Cabinet, which will 
comprise the ten participating local authorities, will provide the basis for initial decision making 
regarding the Investment Fund. 

 
 It was noted that the report is being presented to each of the 10 constituent authorities and to 

date, 5 have considered and approved its content and subsequent recommendations. The 
Joint Working Agreement which includes the Assurance Framework and Implementation Plan 
were appended to the report and details of the legal and governance implications arising from 
the Agreement were detailed within the report. 

 
 Since the 15th March 2016, the ten constituent councils have been working with the Welsh 

and UK Governments to establish the governance arrangements required releasing the 
£1.2bn of investment through a 20-year Investment Fund. This will ensure the right 
investments are made to achieve significant economic growth. The CCR City Deal has set a 
small number of key targets, which are the creation of 25,000 new jobs by 2036 and leverage 
of £4 billion of private sector investment as a result of the £1.2bn public sector investment. On 
a pro rata basis, and as 12% of the region, this in turn could lead to 2 - 3,000 jobs within the 
area. 
 

 It was noted that the CCR City Deal Investment Fund comprises two distinct elements, the 
Metro scheme (which is the direct responsibility of Welsh Government) and the Regional 
Cabinet Fund (the responsibility of the CCR Regional Cabinet). 

 
 During the course of the debate, reference was made to the need to ensure there is 

investment in education, skills and employability to ensure there is an alignment between 
future employer skills needs and education provision across the region which in turn will 
improve productivity and participation in the economy.  It was noted that there are plans to 

strengthen the existing Learning, Skills and Innovation Partnership and the City Deal is 
supported by the higher education sector which includes Cardiff University, Cardiff 
Metropolitan University and the University of South Wales. 

 

 In that transport has a key role in delivering economic growth and improving outcomes for 
people by connecting communities, business, jobs, facilities and services, reference was 
also made to the need to ensure the transport infrastructure is adequate and to the fact 
that there are significant congestion and transport capacity issues that need to be 
addressed. It was noted that the Cardiff Capital Region will establish a new non-statutory 
Regional Transport Authority to co-ordinate transport planning and investment, in 
partnership with the Welsh Government. Clive Campbell (Transportation Engineering 
Manager) has been seconded to assist in this role. 

 Members were advised that a key priority, which the City Deal Investment Fund will 
support, is the delivery of the South East Wales Metro (including the Valley Lines 
Electrification programme). The scheme has the potential to provide a significantly 
improved public transport system that will transform the way people travel around the 
region. Given the importance of the Metro to the UK Government, Welsh Government and 
Cardiff Capital Region, a proportion of the Investment Fund will be pre-allocated to the 
delivery of this scheme and as such, is being progressed. 

 

Page 2



3 
 

 Members welcomed the opportunity to be part of the City Deal which will assist in delivering 
the Council’s priorities of economic development and regeneration. 

 
 Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the 

recommendations in the report be approved.  By a show of hands this was unanimously 
agreed. 

 
 RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in report, the Leader of the Council or 

his/her nominated deputy be granted delegated authority to sign the Joint Working 
Agreement on behalf of the Council. 

 
 RECOMMENDED that for the reasons contained in the report, Council be requested 

to:-  
 

(i) approve the Joint Working Agreement as the legal document that formally 
establishes the Cardiff Capital Region (CCR) Joint Committee (the Regional 
Cabinet) as a Joint Committee, with delegated functions, with a 
Commencement Date of the 1st March, 2017.  The elected member 
representative to the Regional Cabinet shall be the Leader of the Council, or 
his/her nominated Deputy; 

 
(ii) approve the financial contributions from each constituent Council towards the 

collective £120m total, (together with such associated costs e.g. carry costs), 
as detailed in the body of this report; 

 
(iii) approve the carry forward of any remaining revenue funds from 2016/2017, 

contributed by each constituent Council into 2017/2018 in order that the 
support structure for the Regional Cabinet continues; 

 
(iv) approve the collective revenue contributions of up to £1 million inclusive of 

recommendation (iii) above, on a proportionate basis as set out in the Joint 
Working Agreement) to the 2017/2018 budget, in order that the support 
structure for the Regional Cabinet continues; 

 
(v) approve the City of Cardiff Council acting as the Accountable Body with the 

responsibilities as set out in the Joint Working Agreement; 
 

(vi) approve the Assurance Framework as the open and transparent, robust 
decision making process for considering all proposals requiring support from 
the CCR City Deal Wider Investment Fund; 

 
(vii) approve that the Interim Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader of the 

Council, the Interim Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer and Acting 
Director of Corporate Services and Section 151 Officer be granted delegated 
authority to agree such amendments as are necessary to the Joint Working 
Agreement Assurance Framework and Implementation Plan (as are 
appropriate) from the  date of acceptances of these recommendations to the 
Commencement Date of the 1st March, 2017; 

 
(viii) approve that the Interim Chief Executive in consultation with the Leader of the 

Council, the Interim Head of Legal Services and Monitoring Officer and Acting 
Director of Corporate Services and Section 151 Officer be granted delegated 
authority to decide whether the Council should continue to explore the 
opportunity to  participate in the CCR City Deal in the event that one or more of 
the ten constituent Councils fail to agree any of the recommendations detailed 
above. 

  

Page 3



4 
 

The meeting closed at 2.35pm. 
 

Approved and signed as a correct record subject to any corrections made at the meeting held 
on 1st March 2017. 
 

 
____________________ 

CHAIR 

Page 4



  

 

 

 
CABINET 

 
MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT PENALLTA HOUSE, TREDOMEN 

ON WEDNESDAY, 15TH FEBRUARY 2017 AT 2.00 P.M. 
 

 
PRESENT 

 
Councillor K. V. Reynolds - Chair 

 
Councillors: 

 
 Mrs C. Forehead (Human Resources and Governance/Business Manager), N. George 

(Community and Leisure Services), D.T. Hardacre (Performance and Asset Management), 
K. James (Regeneration, Planning and Sustainable Development), Mrs B. Jones (Corporate 
Services), D.V. Poole (Housing), T.J. Williams (Highways, Transportation and Engineering) 
and R. Woodyatt (Social Services) 

 
 

Together with: 
 
 C. Burns (Interim Chief Executive), C. Harrhy (Corporate Director - Communities), 

N. Scammell (Acting Director of Corporate Services and Section 151 Officer) and D. Street 
(Corporate Director – Social Services). 
 

Also in Attendance: 
 

 S. Harris (Interim Head of Corporate Finance), R. Hartshorn (Head of Public Protection), 
D. Whetter (Principle Engineer – Project Development Team) and C. Evans (Committee 
Services Officer) 

 
 
1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 
 

Apologies for absence had been received from Councillor D. Havard. 
 
 
2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST 
 
 There were no declarations of interest received at the beginning or during the course of the 

meeting. 
 
 
3. CABINET – 1ST FEBRUARY 2017 
 

RESOLVED that the minutes of the meeting held on 1st February 2017 (minute nos. 1 
- 5) be approved and signed as a correct record. 

  

Page 5

Agenda Item 4



  

 MATTERS ON WHICH EXECUTIVE DECISIONS WERE REQUIRED 
 
4. CARBON REDUCTION INITIATIVES CAPITAL ALLOCATION 
 

The report sought Cabinet approval for capital budget allocation for carbon reduction 
initiatives to increase the provision of solar panels at schools and to pilot the use of electric 
vehicles for Council business. 
 
It was noted that the Budget Proposals 2016/17 and Medium Term Financial Strategy 
2016/2021 report, which was considered by Full Council on the 24th February 2016 
recommended an allocation of £215,000 for carbon reduction initiatives.  The report sought 
the approval of Cabinet to allocate £100,000 to install solar photo voltaic (PV) systems on 20 
schools in the county borough in 2017/18, and to allocate a further £4,000 to install electric 
vehicle charging points at Penallta House and at Tir-Y-Berth Depot.  It is proposed that 
electric vehicles would be trialled in Countryside and also in the Meals Direct meals on wheels 
service, together with the provision of an electric pool vehicle. 
 
Discussions took place around the proposals to lease 3 electric vehicles.  Members were 
asked to note that the one-off cost of installing 2 charging points is up to £4,000 and therefore 
the payback period would be just over a year.  However, the project demonstrates the 
Authority’s commitment to sustainable development and work towards the Well-being of 
Future Generations Act.  Members requested that further information be sought on the terms 
of the lease, and whether a term less than 3 years would be possible.  Officers agreed that 
further research would be conducted but assured Members that technology has developed 
dramatically in order to make the vehicles reliable. 
 

 Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the 
recommendations in the report be approved.  By a show of hands this was unanimously 
agreed. 

 
RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report: - 

 
(i) a Revenue Contribution to Capital Outlay (RCCO) from the Miscellaneous 

Finance Budget to fund capital works of £100,000 to install Photo Voltaic (PV) 
systems of up to 4Kw on 20 schools in the Caerphilly Count Borough be 
agreed; 
 

(ii) a Revenue Contribution to Capital Outlay (RCCO) from the Miscellaneous 
Finance budget to fund capital works of £4,000 to install electric vehicle 
charging points at Penallta House and Tir-Y-Berth Depot be agreed. 

 
 
5. SCRAP METAL DEALERS AND DOG BREEDERS LICENSING FEES 2017/18 
 
 The report provided Cabinet with details of the review of fees for Scrap Metal Dealers and 

Dog Breeders licences and sought approval for a revised fee structure for 2017/18. 
 
 It was noted that the Scrap Metal Dealers Act 2013 was enacted on 1st of October 2013 and 

introduced a new licensing system to control site operators and itinerant collectors.  Animal 
Welfare (Breeding of Dogs) (Wales) Regulations 2014 replaced the Breeding of Dogs Act 
1973 and came into force on the 30th April 2015. 

 
 Both Acts and supporting Regulations are silent upon the issue of the responsibility for 

exercising the function under the Act.  Consequently the provisions of Section 9 (D) of the 
Local Government Act 2000 are triggered and by default the function is exercised by the 
Executive. 

  

Page 6



  

 Fees for Scrap Metal Dealer licences were set by Cabinet on 18th September 2013 and Dog 
Breeders on 25th January 2016 and have been reviewed with all other Licensing fees for 
2017/18. 

 
 The report outlined that the revised fees are modest changes and would provide a small 

income to the overall Licensing Budget.  There are currently two licensed dog breeders in the 
borough, therefore the slight reduction in fee is negligible.  There is an increase in income 
from the proposed Scrap Metal fees, which would be apportioned across a 3 year terms of the 
licence.  However, Members noted that, as a result of the value of scrap metal dropping, there 
could be a reduction in the number of renewal applications for collectors. 

 
 Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the recommendation 

in the report be approved.  By a show of hands this was unanimously agreed. 
 
 RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report the fee structure, as 

set out in paragraphs 4.4 and 4.5 be approved for implementation from 1st April 2017. 
 
 
6. “BUSINESS ENTERPRISE & INNOVATION” PROJECT – REGIONAL APPLICATION FOR 

EU STRUCTURAL & INVESTMENT FUNDS EFDF PRIORITY 4 OBJECTIVE 4 
 
 The report sought the approval of Cabinet for the Council to engage in a collaborative regional 

project that seeks grant funding under the European Regional Development Fund (ERDF) 
Priority 4, Strategic Objective 4 for the expansion of the Lawns Industrial Estate, Rhymney. 

 
 In September 2016, following a meeting of the South East Wales Directors of Environment 

and Regeneration (SEWDER), the Council was requested to work with five neighbouring 
Authorities to develop a regional project proposal for European Regional Development Fund 
(ERDF) Priority 4 funding.  The project aims to unlock the development of business sites and 
premises to support economic growth and urban development. 

 
 Cabinet noted that with an estimated overall project budget of £12m, the ERDF funding 

available for the regional undertaking is expected to be circa £8m.  The indicative budget 
allocation for each local authority project proposal is £2m (based on £1.3m ERDF grant and 
£0.7m match funding).  The first stage of the ERDF bid process has been completed, with the 
submission of an initial Expression of Interest and the “Operation Logic Table” (OLT) by the 
regional partners to the Welsh European Funding Office (WEFO) in September 2016.  If 
approved, the regional project will be invited by WEFO to progress to detailed Business 
Planning stage in 2017.  An initial scoping and prioritisation exercise has been carried out to 
establish the sustainability of sites for inclusion in the regional project. 

 
 Based on the potential of the site to meet critical deliverability timescales and contribute to the 

relevant ERDF and other key strategic priorities it is considered that the most appropriate site 
within the County Borough to take forward is the Lawns Industrial Estate, Rhymney. 

 
 Cabinet thanked the Officer for the report and were pleased to note that there has been a 

demand for units in the North of the Borough, however raised concerns around the timescales 
provided within the report.  Officers assured Members that, whilst there are rigorous 
processes to be followed, every effort, where possible, will be made to ensure this project can 
be taken forward as soon as possible. 

 
 Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the 

recommendations in the report be approved.  By a show of hands this was unanimously 
agreed. 

  

Page 7



  

 RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer’s report: - 
 

(i) the Council’s participation in the regional collaborative project “Business 
Enterprise & Innovation” be agreed; 

 
(ii) the selection of the Lawns Industrial Estate Expansion as the preferred project 

within the regional submission be agreed; 
 
(iii) a project development budget of £50k be established to allow the detailed 

project proposals to be progressed to the required standard by WEFO through 
the 12 month mobilisation stage to secure £1.3m ERDF funding; 

 
(iv) the project development budget be funded through the transfer of £50k of the 

anticipated 2016/17 revenue underspend for the Communities Directorate into 
an earmarked reserve. 

 
 
 RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL 
 
7. BUDGET PROPOSALS 2017/18 AND MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2017/2022 
 
 The report sought the endorsement of Cabinet for the 2017/18 budget proposals, prior to final 

determination at Council on 22 February 2017. 
 
 Cabinet noted that the Welsh Government (WG) Provisional 2017/18 Local Government 

Financial Settlement was published on the 19th October 2016, which provided a 0.3% 
reduction in funding for Caerphilly CBC (a cash decrease of £608k). 

 
 Details of draft 2017/18 budget proposals were subsequently presented to Cabinet on the 

30th November 2016, the key elements of which were a proposed increase of 1% in Council 
Tax and a package of proposed savings totalling £8.653m. 

 
 The Final 2017/18 Financial Settlement was announced on the 21st December 2016, which 

provided a confirmed increase in WG funding for Caerphilly CBC of £326k (0.12%).  This 
represents an increase of £934k on the cash reduction of £608k in the Provisional Financial 
Settlement.  The main reasons for the increase from the Provisional Settlement are a change 
in the Council Tax Base, and additional funding of £283k in the Final Settlement for new 
responsibilities in relation to homelessness prevention. 

 
 Cabinet were asked to note that, whilst the Final Settlement results in a cash increase for 

Caerphilly CBC, after adjusting for new responsibilities and grants transferred into and out of 
the settlement, the net position is an effective cash reduction when comparing on a like-for-
like basis. 

 
 The net impact of the changes from the Provisional to Final Settlement is an improvement of 

£479k as outlined in paragraph 4.1.5 of the report.  However, there are a number of emerging 
issues that require consideration in determining the Final 2017/18 Budget Proposals.  These 
will need to be funded from the £479k headroom in the Final Settlement along with further 
savings of £393k, which will be in addition to the savings of £8.653m identified in the 2017/18 
Draft Budget Proposals. 

 
 To ensure that a balanced budget is achieved for 2017/18, a Council Tax increase of 1% is 

proposed.  This will increase the Caerphilly CBC Band D precept from £1,001.94 to £1,011.96 
resulting in an annual increase of £10.02 or weekly increase of £0.19. 

 
 Cabinet noted that significant financial challenges still lie ahead and Appendix 4 of the report 

provided details of an updated Medium-Term Financial Plan, which provided a potential 
savings requirement of £37.835m for the period 2017/18 to 2021/22. 

Page 8



  

 Members were assured that detailed work would be undertaken by Officers during the coming 
months to review previously considered savings proposals, that have not yet been 
implemented, and identify new savings proposals for consideration. 

 
 Members discussed the report at length and the Chief Executive drew attention to a reference 

in the Minutes of the Special Education for Life Scrutiny Committee on 15 December 2016, in 
which the Committee endorsed the report, subject to there being no compulsory 
redundancies.  Officers highlighted that, whilst every effort will be made to prevent compulsory 
redundancies, through vacancy management and the implementation of the nil impact 
savings, guarantees cannot be made at this stage, however, there are no indications at this 
stage that compulsory redundancies would be an issue.  In addition, Cabinet were asked to 
note that schools also have budget pressures and this could impact on staffing levels though 
again redundancies are avoided wherever possible. 

 
 Following consideration and discussion, it was moved and seconded that the 

recommendations in the report be approved.  By a show of hands this was unanimously 
agreed. 

 
 RESOLVED that for the reasons contained in the Officer's report it be recommended 

to Council that: - 
 

(i) the grants passported into/out of the Financial Settlement and the funding for 
new responsibilities be passed directly to those services that they relate to 
(paragraphs 4.2.2, 4.2.3 and 4.2.4 of the report refer); 

 
(ii) the proposed savings for 2017/18 totalling £9.046m as set out in paragraph 4.3.1 

of the report be agreed; 
 

(iii) the Revenue Budget proposals for 2017/18 of £325.431m as set out in the report 
and summarised in Appendix 1 be agreed; 

 
(iv) the proposed Capital Programme for the period 2017/18 to 2019/20 as set out in 

Appendix 2 of the report be agreed; 
 

(v) the proposed used of General Fund Balances as detailed in Appendix 3 of the 
report be agreed; 

 
(vi) the updated Medium Term Financial Plan detailed in Appendix 4 of the report 

and the indicative savings requirement of £37.835m for the five-year period 
2017/18 to 2021/22 be noted. 

 
 

The meeting closed at 2.18 p.m. 
 

Approved and signed as a correct record subject to any corrections made at the meeting held 
on 1st March 2017. 

 
 

____________________ 
CHAIR 

Page 9



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 10



 
 

 

 

CABINET – 1ST MARCH 2017 
 

SUBJECT: JUNIOR & YOUTH FORUM PRIORITIES 2017 
 
REPORT BY: CHIEF EDUCATION OFFICER 
 

 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT  
 
1.1 To inform Cabinet of issues raised by Children & Young People via the Junior and Youth 

Forums. This report was considered by the Education for Life Scrutiny Committee on 10th 
January 2017 who supported the priorities presented. 

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 Following the Youth Forum Conference in October 2016 and the Junior Forum Meeting in 

November 2016, Children & Young People have identified issues important to them and  have 
voted on a Priority Issue for 2017. 

 
2.2 The previously agreed process that follows the identification of issues has been as follows: 
 

• Presentation of issues to DMT for information. 
• Young People present issues to Cabinet for information and to request support in 

addressing the Youth Forum priority. 
• Young People to present issues to relevant scrutiny groups for information. 
• Issues are presented directly by Young People. 
• Young People form a Project Group that meets weekly to address the Youth Forum 

priority issue, working directly with Officers and Members as appropriate on a range of 
initiatives intended to have a positive impact on the issue. This work continues until 
September 2017, with the process re-starting in October. 

 
2.3 The Senior Youth Service Manager presented the Junior & Youth Forum Priorities to the 

Education for Life Scrutiny Committee Scrutiny, who supported the presentation of the 
priorities to Cabinet. 

 
 
3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 The Local Participation Action Plan 2013. 
 
3.2 The Caerphilly County Borough Single Integrated Plan 2013-2017(SIP) with particular 

reference to the LSB Citizen Engagement Strategy 2013. 
 
3.3 The United Nations Convention on the Rights of the Child and Welsh Government Extending 

Entitlement Guidance. 
 

3.4 The Wellbeing of Future Generations Act (Wales) 2016 contributing to: 
  

Page 11

Agenda Item 5



• A prosperous Wales 
• A resilient Wales 
• A healthier Wales 
• A more equal Wales 
• A Wales of cohesive communities 
• A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 
• A globally responsible Wales 

 
 
4. THE REPORT 
 
4.1 The Junior & Youth Forum are structured and organised around the five themes of the Single 

Integrated Plan: Prosperous Caerphilly; Safer Caerphilly; Learning Caerphilly; Healthier 
Caerphilly; Greener Caerphilly, enabling children and young people to have a voice on issues 
that affect them. Junior Forum Representatives are aged 7-11 years; Youth Forum 
Representatives are aged 11-25 years. 

 
4.2 At the Annual Youth Forum Conference Young People are provided with the opportunity to 

explore issues previously raised by young people through a borough wide consultation. Young 
people attending the conference present their views on each of the five themes and engage in 
a dialogue with Officers that are responsible for delivering the objectives of each theme, along 
with Cabinet members. From exploring all themes within the context of young people’s lives, 
young people identify and agree on a priority issue for each theme. 

 
 Following the Conference an overall priority is voted upon by Young People representing the 

Youth Service, Schools and Youth Support Services.  The issues voted for by 1116 young 
people for 2017 are: 

 
 31% Healthier Caerphilly 
 Mental Health - Awareness of Mental Health needs to be improved and stereotypes should be 

challenged 
 
 28% Safer Caerphilly 
 Car Safety - Young people need to be more aware of car safety both as a driver and as a 

passenger. This includes: seatbelts, distraction of the driver, use of alcohol and illegal 
substances, speeding, using mobile phones and overcrowding the car 

 
 24% Learning Caerphilly  
 First Aid Education - All young people should learn basic first aid and mental health first aid 
 
 8.5% Prosperous Caerphilly  
 Transport - Make public transport cheaper and improve local routes to ensure the whole 

borough is accessible for young people for learning and employment opportunities 
 
 8.5% Greener Caerphilly  
 Adventurous Outdoor Play - Provide safe adventurous play areas suitable for young people to 

encourage them to use local outdoor spaces 
 
4.3 The Junior Forum representatives identified a priority within each theme of the Forum, raised 

via consultation with children and then vote for an overall priority. The issues voted upon by 
109 children are: 

 
 25% Greener Caerphilly 
 More awareness of local wildlife and the harm grass fire cause to natural habitats 
 
 24% Learning Caerphilly  
 More treats and rewards for children who are trying hard to learn 
  

Page 12



 19% Safer Caerphilly 
 More lights on cycle paths and walkways 
 
 17% Healthier Caerphilly 
 More awareness of what social services do for children 
 
 15% Prosperous Caerphilly 
 More awareness of Caerphilly tourist attractions. Provide free transport and improve public 

transport links to the tourist attractions. 
 
4.4 The issues raised by Children & Young People via the Junior and Youth Forums were 

presented by the Senior Youth Service Manager at the meeting of the Education for Life 
Scrutiny Committee on 10th January 2017. 

 
4.5  Members of the Scrutiny Committee noted that the top priority of the Youth Forum (as was 

raised 12 months ago) is raising awareness in relation to Mental Health issues and what 
services are available to help young people.  It was explained at that time that this is an 
ongoing issue and that CAMHS (Child and Adult Mental Health Services), is at full capacity in 
terms of services available and that the Local Authority, with Education Psychologists may 
need to consider looking at other approaches and developing innovative actions.  A Member 
queried the priority ‘Improvements to public transport’ and how this links in with ‘A prosperous 
Wales’ Wellbeing Goals and the Committee were informed there is strong recognition from 
young people relating to accessing the County Borough and public transport where user 
friendliness and frequency has also been discussed. It was noted that the Forum will need to 
engage with Officers to obtain expert guidance on how this issue can be moved forward. 

 
4.6 Members also considered the propriety of the Junior Forum – ‘More awareness of local 

wildlife and the harm grass fires cause to natural habitats’ and how this could be taken 
forward. 

 
4.7 After due deliberation of both the Junior and Youth Forum priorities, the Education for Life 

Scrutiny Committee supported the proposal of the Youth Forum in addressing their Priority 
Issue – ‘Awareness of mental health needs to be improved and stereotypes should be 
challenged’, and that of the  Junior Forum in addressing their Priority Issue – ‘More 
awareness of local wildlife and the harm grass fires cause to natural habitats’, and noted that 
a presentation would be made to Cabinet in order that they can be taken forward. 

 
 
5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
5.1 These Priority themes intrinsically link with the 7 Well-being Goals and are aligned with the 

five ways of working, as set out in Links to Strategy above and tabled below, as they are 
generated by the Children and Young People of the County Borough.  Therefore, the process 
is both collaborative and involving as a given, as the Forums are central to Caerphilly’s 
Participation commitment. The priority recommendations are all permanent in nature, thereby 
demonstrating long term intention. The remaining correlation with Prevention and Integration 
are acknowledged in the table below. 

 

Junior/Youth Forum priorities Additional links to 5 ways of 
working 

Wellbeing goals 

 Improvements to public 
transport 

 Integration 
 

A prosperous Wales 

 Car Safety 

 More awareness of what 
Social Services do for 
children 

 

 Prevention 
 

A resilient Wales 
 

 Mental Health - 
Awareness of mental 

 Prevention 
 Integration 

A healthier Wales 
 

Page 13



health needs to be 
improved and stereotypes 
should be challenged 

 First Aid Education 

 Adventurous Outdoor Play 
 

 
 
 

 Prevention 
 Integration 

 

 More rewards for children 
who are trying hard to 
learn 

 

 Integration 
 

A more equal Wales 
 

 More lights on cycle paths 
and walkways 

 

 Prevention 
 

A Wales of cohesive 
communities 
 

 More awareness of 
Caerphilly tourist 
attractions. 

 Provide free transport and 
improve public transport 
links to the tourist 
attractions.  

 

 Integration 
 
 

 Integration 
 

 

A Wales of vibrant 
culture and thriving 
Welsh language 
 

 Awareness of local wildlife 
and the harm grass fire 
cause to natural habitats 

 

 Prevention 
 
 

A globally 
responsible Wales 
 

 
 
6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 There are no direct equalities implications arising from the report at this stage. 
 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no direct financial implications arising from the report at this stage. 
 
 
8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no direct personnel implications arising from the report at this stage. 
 
 
9. CONSULTATIONS 
 
9.1 All issues have been identified in consultation with Children & Young People. 
 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 Cabinet to have due regard to issues raised by Children and Young People when making 

decisions which impact upon their lives. 
 
10.2 Cabinet to support the Youth Forum in addressing their Priority Issue; Awareness of mental 

health needs to be improved and stereotypes should be challenged. 
 
10.3 Cabinet to support Young People’s attendance at Health Social Care and Wellbeing Scrutiny 

Committee to present their Priority Issue. 
  

Page 14



11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 To ensure members are informed of priorities identified by Children & Young People. 
 
 
Author:        Clare Jones, Youth Forum Co-ordinator - Jonescl1@caerphilly.gov.uk 
Consultees: Chris Burns, Interim Chief Executive 
                              Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer 
                              Directorate Senior Management Team  
                              Councillor Derek Havard, Cabinet Member, Education and Lifelong Learning 
                              Councillor Wynne David, Chair of Education Scrutiny Committee  
  Paul O’Neill – Senior Youth Service Manager 

Page 15



This page is intentionally left blank

Page 16



 
 

 

 
CABINET - 1ST MARCH 2017 

 
SUBJECT: WELL BEING OBJECTIVES 2017/18  
 
REPORT BY: CORPORATE DIRECTOR, SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
 
1. PURPOSE OF REPORT 
 
1.1 To present to Cabinet the Council’s draft Well being Objectives for 2017/18 and to seek the 

views and approval of Cabinet prior to its presentation to Council on 7th March 2017. 
 
1.2 The Local Government Measure 2009 requires all local authorities in Wales to set and publish 

a set of priorities called Improvement Objectives as soon as is ‘practicably possible’ in the 
new financial year, however the introduction of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015 (WBFGA) also places a legal requirement for public bodies to set and publish ‘Well-
being Objectives’ and publish by a specific date of no later than 31st March 2017. 

 
1.3 As there is a cross over between the two pieces of  legislation, authorities are treating the two 

requirements as one outcome, to publish one set of Well being Objectives by the 31st March 
and the Wales Audit Office and Welsh Local Government Association (WLGA) have endorsed 
this approach. 

 
 
2. SUMMARY 
 
2.1 The report provides an update on the requirements of the Well-being of Future Generations 

(Wales) Act 2015 (WBFGA) in respect of setting and publishing Well-being Objectives 
2017/18 and lists the Council’s draft Well-being Objectives for 2017/18. 

 
 
3. LINKS TO STRATEGY 
 
3.1 The Council’s current Well-being Objectives contribute to the single integrated plan, 

‘Caerphilly Delivers’ and all of the Well-being Goals in the Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015:  

 
• A prosperous Wales 
• A resilient Wales 
• A healthier Wales 
• A more equal Wales 
• A Wales of cohesive communities 
• A Wales of vibrant culture and thriving Welsh language 
• A globally responsible Wales 

  

Page 17

Agenda Item 6



4. THE REPORT 
 
4.1 The WBFGA requires public bodies to set Well-being Objectives by 31st March 2017.  There 

must be a well being statement to accompany the objectives which says why the Council has 
chosen the objectives that it has chosen, what resources will be allocated, the steps to be 
taken to meet the objectives, and how the well-being objectives will contribute to the 
achievement of the well-being goals. 

 
4.2 The Local Government Measure 2009 is in part still in force (part two has been revoked, part 

one has not).  It is in part one that an authority is required to set Improvement Objectives. 
However the Local Government Measure does not give a specific date for publishing stating 
‘an authority must publish as soon as practicably possible into the new financial planning 
year’. ‘Practicably possible’ allows for delaying the setting of objectives in certain 
circumstances such as an election year, providing an opportunity for a new administration to 
develop their own objectives after an election. This is common practice for most authorities 
and accepted by the regulator. 

 
4.3 Whilst the Local Government Measure allows for a delay in publication, the WBFGA does not 

provide for any extenuating circumstances and states that Well-being Objectives must be 
published by 31st March. 

 
4.4 Additionally the ‘well being assessment’ required by the WBFGA legislation has new and 

emerging priorities both from consultation and engagement data.  The priorities determined by 
the assessment will form the Well being Plan for the Public Services Board and its 
subsequent action plan to be issued by May 2018.  The Council’s own contribution, through its 
own well-being objectives, should be reviewed in light of this extensive and emerging 
information. 

 
4.5 With conflicting timing requirements and the finalising of the well being assessment the advice 

now received from the Welsh Local Government Association and Wales Audit Office is to set 
objectives prior to 31st March 2017 and then review them after local elections and in light of 
the emerging priorities. 

 
4.6 We reviewed our 2016 Well-being Objectives and concluded they still continue to contribute 

strongly to well-being goals for 2017/18.  The five Well being Objectives are:  
 
Well being Objectives  Well being Statement  

1.To help people make the best use of 
their household income and manage 
their debts 

 
 

Poverty harms people’s prospects and damages their 
long term future.  It also places a burden on public 
resources and services. Data in Caerphilly shows we 
have above average levels of unemployment, economic 
inactivity and deprivation and current welfare reforms 
are having a large and disproportionate impact upon 
residents in our borough compared to the UK average. 
15/16 data shows that Caerphilly is higher than the 
Wales average in unemployment and those that are 
economically inactive.  Improving this aspect for people 
will help maximise a Prosperous Wales and a more 
Resilient Wales.  

2. Improve outcomes for all learners, 
particularly those vulnerable to  
underachievement  

 

Data identifies that we have a performance gap 
between those within these groups and that of the 
overall population.  For example those who achieve 
level 2 threshold (including a GCSE pass) at level 2 in 
English or Welsh and Maths is 52.6% in academic year 
2015.  Those who are in receipt of free school meals for 
the same measure achieved 26%.  We need to 
continue with intensive work to aim to reduce the gap 
and ensure all young people are provided with 

Page 18



appropriate opportunities. This contributes to a 
Prosperous and More Equal Wales. 
 

3. Close the gap in life expectancy for 
residents between the most and least 
deprived areas in the borough  

There is an inequality gap where residents living in 
areas of high deprivation have statistically higher levels 
of ill health from those who do not. 
The gap in healthy life expectancy between our most 
and least deprived communities was 19.2 years for 
males and 17.4 years for females. Whilst new data 
positively shows this is reducing (13.2 years for males) 
it is still high and the need still exists to improve this 
area as it is connected to many aspects of quality of life.   
This objective would contribute towards a Healthier 
Wales, a Prosperous, and a More Equal Wales.   

4. Carbon Management: Reduce our 
carbon footprint  

 

Our climate is undergoing changes as the direct 
result of greenhouse gas (GHG) emissions from 
human activity. Carbon dioxide (CO2) is the most 
significant and prevalent GHG emitted mostly from 
the burning of fossil fuels like coal, oil and natural 
gas. The UK Government has committed to take 
action and has introduced the Climate Change Act 
with a target to cut carbon emissions by at least 80% 
by 2050, with a minimum reduction of 26% by 2020 
across the UK. CCBC is the biggest employer in the 
borough and as such has a large carbon footprint, we 
have an obligation to minimise and associated negative 
impact to the environment. The objective is to reduce 
carbon of 26,035 tonnes and to run financial and carbon 
savings projects and benefits for example with 
significant investment in solar PV arrays for Homes 
for the Elderly and schools. This objective would 
contribute directly towards a Prosperous and a 
Globally Responsible Wales. 
 

5. Investment in Council homes to 
transform lives and communities   

The long-term affordability of housing, low incomes, fuel 
poverty and improving the quality of housing in the 
social sectors, are some of the main challenges facing 
the Authority. Council homes across our County 
Borough will receive over £200 million investment over 
the next few years as part of a Welsh Housing Quality 
Standard (WHQS) programme.         
We have outlined major spending plans in the “Your 
Home Your Choice” document to give our housing stock 
a massive facelift to meet the requirements of the 
WHQS.  This is a major flagship programme that will be 
a boost to the local economy. In addition, the Council 
has set the ambition that money spent improving homes 
should be a catalyst to wider regeneration, improving 
lives and communities. 

We will aim to ensure all council homes meet the Welsh 
Housing Quality Standard, helping to improve the 
quality of life for the people who live in those homes.  

This objective maximises contribution towards a 
Resilient Wales and a Wales of Cohesive 
Communities, described as attractive, viable, safe and 
well-connected. 

  
Page 19



4.7 Public bodies must publish a statement about their well-being objectives at the 
same time that they publish their well-being objectives. The statement must explain: 

 
• Why the public body considers that its well-being objectives will contribute to the 

achievement of the well-being goals; 
• Why the public body considers that its well-being objectives have been set in 

accordance with the sustainable development principle;  
• The steps to be taken to meet the well-being objectives in accordance with 

the sustainable development principle; 
• How each public body will govern itself to meet its well-being objectives; 
• How each public body will keep the steps it takes to meet its well-being objectives 

under review; 
• How each public body will ensure that resources, including financial, are allocated 

annually for the purpose of taking steps to meet its objectives; 
• When each public body expects to meet its well-being objectives; 
• Any other relevant information about their well-being objectives that they consider 

relevant. 
 
4.8 It is proposed that the above current Well-being Objectives are presented to Council for 

approval prior to 31st March 2017 for 2017/18. It is also proposed that after the local 
government election any new administration takes the opportunity to review them.  The 
WBFGA statutory guidance states that “after that point public bodies may decide they want to 
change one or more of their well-being objectives. There is no deadline or fixed point in time 
where this should happen”.  This also allows the objectives to be set with regard to the 
emerging evidence from the Public Services Board’s well-being assessment. 

 
 
5. WELL-BEING OF FUTURE GENERATIONS 
 
5.1 Delivering on the actions required to support the Well-being Objectives is consistent with the 

five ways of working as defined within the sustainable development principle in the Act. The 
proposed Well-being Objectives maximise contribution to the Well-being Goals as set out 
above. They focus on long term issues with an emphasis on prevention that will impact upon 
current and also future generations. Our communities are involved in shaping their delivery 
with many aspects only being achievable in collaboration with our partners. 

 
 
6. EQUALITIES IMPLICATIONS 
 
6.1 This report is for information purposes only, so the Council's full Equalities Impact 

Assessment process does not need to be applied. The Well-being Objectives however will 
benefit different groups of citizens if achieved  

 
 
7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS 
 
7.1 There are no direct financial implications at this time, but the Well-being Statement must 

explain how the Council will ensure that resources, including financial, are allocated annually 
for the purpose of taking steps to meet its objectives. 

 
 
8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS 
 
8.1 There are no personnel implications from this report 
  

Page 20



9. CONSULTATIONS 
 
9.1 All responses from consultations have been incorporated in the report and reflects the views 

of the consultees. 
 
 
10. RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
10.1 That Cabinet endorse the proposal to present the above current Well-being Objectives to 

Council, together with their well-being statement, for approval on 7th March 2017 and that 
they are further reviewed by the new administration after the local government elections. 

 
 
11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS 
 
11.1 For the reasons set out in the report, Cabinet consider the approach the authority will need to 

take in meeting the timelines of the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 and 
the Local Government Measure 2009. 

 
 
12. STATUTORY POWER  
 
12.1 Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 & Local Government Measure 2009. 
 
 
Author:        Ros Roberts, Corporate Performance Manager, roberr@caerphilly.gov.uk 
Consultees: Chris Burns, Interim Chief Executive  
 Christina Harrhy, Corporate Director, Communities  

Dave Street, Corporate Director, Social Services   
 Nicole Scammell, Acting Director of Corporate Services & S151 
 Stephen Harris, Interim Head of Corporate Finance 
 Cllr D, Hardacre, Cabinet Member, Property and Performance  

Gail Williams, Interim Head of Legal Services and Monitoring officer 
Rob Hartshorn, Head of Public Protection  
Keri Cole, Chief Education Officer  
Shaun Couzens, Chief Housing Officer  
Colin Jones, Head of Property 
Kathryn Peters, Corporate Policy Manager 
Shaun Watkins, Principal Personnel Officer, Social Services 
Anwen Rees, Senior Equalities Officer, Equalities 
Paul Cooke, Senior Policy Officer   

 
Appendices: 
Appendix 1 Well-being Objectives 2017/18 

Page 21



 

 

1 

 

PAGE 1 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 

 

 

  

 

 

       

I am delighted to introduce Caerphilly Council’s Well-being 
Objectives for 2017-2018 as these will help shape the way we 
deliver our services in the best interests of our residents over the 
next 12 months.  It is important to note that having objectives does 
not stop us carrying out and trying to improve the many things we 
already do, but they are helpful to prioritise areas that will improve 
our residents’ quality of life in a sustainable way.   
 
Although these objectives are important areas to improve upon, 
we will review them later in the year to make sure they remain 
current and are what our communities want.  This is because the 
Public Services Board (PSB), of which the Council is a partnership 
member, has carried out a thorough assessment called a ‘Well-
being Assessment’ that uses different data sets for analysing a 
picture of our county borough. But data alone is not enough to 
provide a rich picture so an extensive consultation was carried out 
to capture feedback from residents outlining how they feel about 
where they live now and how they would like to see their 
community improve and move forward over the longer term.  We 
are bringing together these views, alongside what the assessment 
data tells us, and on behalf of the PSB consulting with partners and 
the public to see if they agree with the final conclusions. This is 
important as it will form the basis of a joint action plan which will 
be implemented by the PSB to work together to improve quality of 
life for our residents.     
 
As a local authority we will want to contribute to those 
improvement areas and build on the strengths.  Additionally we 
have local elections in May and any new administration will have 
ideas on the kind of improvement they want to deliver, so this is 
why we will be reviewing our Well-being Objectives later in the 
year.   Our other 8 priorities ran from 2013-2017 and we will 
publish how we performed against them in our annual report in the 
autumn. 

  

 

 

Foreword from the Leader  

CAERPHILLY COUNCIL WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES  
MARCH 2017 

Page 1 – Foreword 
from Leader  
 
Page 2 – Setting the 
scene with our well 
being statement, 
Contribution to 
National Goals   
 
Page 3 –Reviewing 
the Objectives  
 
Page 4 –18 The Well-
being Objectives 
 
Page 19 – Council 
Priorities  
 
Page 20 
Connection between 
priorities, objectives 
and the all Wales 
National Goals 
 
Page 21 – Description 
of the National Goals 
 
Page 22 – Contact us 

 

Councilor Keith Reynolds  

Page 22



 

 

2 

 

PAGE 2 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

  

Our Well-being Objectives have been carried forward 
from 2016/17 as we still have more work to do on these.   

As mentioned in the Leader’s foreword we have 
undertaken a well being assessment identifying 
emerging needs and strengths, and carried out 
considerable public consultation.  The areas that people 
raised in consultation are reflected in this set of            
Well-being Objectives, for example their concerns about 
poverty and education.  However as the work progresses 
on this analysis we will want to review our Well-being 
Objectives in the light of the emerging information 
around the autumn of 2017. 

 Setting the Well-being Objectives 

Each objective has its own section called ‘why we chose 
this’.  This is in effect our ‘Well-being Statement’ as it 
explains the rationale for why we chose this particular 
objective and how we believe these objectives will 
contribute to the achievement of the Well-being Goals.   

More information about Well-being of Future Generations 
(Wales) Act 2015 is available from:   
thewaleswewant.co.uk/about/well-being-future-
generations-wales-act-2015 

 

 

 

 Well being Statement  

.  

 

 

 

What is Well-being? 

Well-being means different 

things to different people, we 

asked our residents what it 

meant to them and you can 

find the answers on 

https://your.caerphilly.gov.uk/

publicservicesboard/content/

what-does-wellbeing-mean-

you 
How the Councils Objectives contribute to the 
National Well-being Goals  

Under the new Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) 
Act 2015 public bodies are required to show how their 
Well-being Objectives have been chosen to maximise their 
contribution towards meeting the Welsh Government’s 
National Well-being goals. Each of our objectives shows 
how they contribute towards the seven well-being goals 
and there is an ‘at a glance’ table on page 20 to show the 
connections.  There is also a description of what is meant 
and included for each goal on page 21.   

Our Well-being Objectives for 
2017 - 2018 
 

WB01 – To help people make 
best use of their household 
income and manage their 
debt.  
WB02 – Improve outcomes for 
all learners particularly those 
vulnerable to 
underachievement  
WB03 – Close the gap in life 
expectancy for residents 
between the most and least 
deprived areas in the borough  
WB04 – Reduce our Carbon 
Footprint  
WB05 – Investment in Council 
Homes to transform lives and 
Communities  

Page 23



 

 

3 

 

PAGE 3 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 

          

What are the five ways of working?  

Legally we need to make sure that when making decisions we take into 
account the impact they could have on people living their lives in the 
future. There are 5 things that we need to think about to show we have 
applied the sustainable development principle 
Long Term - The importance of balancing short-term needs with the need 
to safeguard the ability to also meet long-term needs.  
Prevention - How acting to prevent problems occurring or getting worse 
may help public bodies meet their objectives.  
Integration - Considering how the public body’s well-being objectives may 
impact upon each of the well-being goals, on their other objectives, or on 
the objectives of other public bodies. 
Collaboration - Acting in collaboration with any other person (or different 
parts of the body itself) that could help the body to meet its well-being 
objectives. 
Involvement - The importance of involving people with an interest in 
achieving the well-being goals, and ensuring that those people reflect the 
diversity of the area which the body serves.   
 

Reviewing the Well-being Objectives 

As noted in the foreword our Well-being Objectives will reviewed after the local 
elections in the summer of 2017.  By this time our ‘Well-being Assessment’ will be 
finalised and we can use this new emergent intelligence to inform a review of our 
objectives.  Any new administration may want to prioritise and resource different 
aspects of the Well-being Assessment and this could alter the priorities, so it is important 
we review this to have the most up to date well-being priorities for our citizens. 

The Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 asks us to state when we think 
our objectives will be met.  Unfortunately the nature of tackling poverty or reduction of 
carbon emissions means a set deadline would be artificial and gives no certainty as we 
are often contributing to dealing with factors beyond our control. 

However, all our current and future Well-being Objectives will have action plans, with 
targets and dates for completion as they do now so we are in a position to monitor 
progress and change position if we need to when our consultations or data are not 
showing the required improvement is working.  The action plan will be reviewed 
informally at a service level and we will govern our work more formally with our Elected 
Members through the relevant scrutiny committees.  The executive branch of the 
Council called ‘Cabinet’ will also review our progress and work towards removing 
barriers to help achieve them. We will publish an Annual Performance Report each year 
to tell the public of our progress. 

The 5 ways of 
working:  

 
Involvement  

Collaboration  
Long Term 
Integration 
Prevention 

(ICLIP) 

Page 24



 

 

4 

 

PAGE 4 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 

  

Our Well-being Objective is to help people make the best use of their household 
Income and manage their debts  
 
Why we chose this 
 
Poverty harms people’s prospects and damages their long term future. It also places a               
burden on public resources and services.  It is in all our interests to tackle poverty. 
Caerphilly Council is committed to ensuring its residents are able to live fulfilled lives 
and are not prevented from enjoying an acceptable standard of living due to economic, 
social or cultural disadvantage.  In their publication ‘A UK Without Poverty’ the Joseph 
Rowntree Foundation (JRF) defines poverty as:  
 
 “When a person’s resources are not enough to meet their basic needs. This includes the 
need to be part of society, by being able to participate in common customs and 
activities, such as buying a birthday present for your partner or sending your child on a 
school trip”.   
  
JRF go on to state that interventions that either increase the resources available to 
households or reduce the costs of meeting their needs will help to reduce poverty. 
Recognising that poverty is dynamic, and differs at different stages of life, JRF propose 
that thought must be given to policies that have an impact now, those that are 
investments in the future and those that provide insurance against future events.  
Additionally the current welfare reforms are having a large and disproportionate impact 
upon residents in our borough and knock-on consequences for our local economy, 
compared to the UK as a whole.  This means achievement of this objective could have 
long term benefits to quality of life in a range of areas.       
 
Common causes of problem debt are job loss, illness and relationship breakdown. Many 
are vulnerable to falling into problem debt following such life events, as too few have 
the financial resilience to cope. We know for example that problem debt can impact on 
good mental health, relationships, education and general well being.  The past few years 
has seen an unprecedented increase in the use of food banks in Wales, with 35,919 

people provided with food in 2012- 2013, increasing to 1,109,309 in 2015/16* and low-
income households can spend 16.6% of their income on food.  Domestic energy prices 
have increased 62% since 2008, increasing 21% in the last two years.  For those on low 
incomes, this is a dramatic increase on their energy bill and they are more likely to be on 
pre-paid meters, and can pay up to £253 more per year than those by direct debit. The 
Step Change charity reports that Council Tax debt and arrears of water bills are amongst 
the most rapidly growing debt for their Welsh clients and the average client has just £10 
left to put towards their debts after they have covered their household costs. For too 

1. Tackling Poverty: Maximising Income 

Page 25



 

 

5 

 

PAGE 5 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 
many, debt has become a serious problem with almost three million people said to be in 
problem debt in Britain.  We must integrate our work as the causes of poverty are 
complex and many, and are driven by external forces beyond our control such as wage 
levels or central government policy, however this objective aims to mitigate the effects.  
The effect of poverty hinders public services ability to improve quality of life.  This 
means we have taken an involved and collaborative approach, where we have set up an 
Anti-Poverty Board.  The board monitors our ‘Tackling Poverty’ strategy and includes 
members from a range of organisations.  Our overall strategy is dependant on our 
partner such as Citizens Advice, local Food Banks, and Credit Unions in particular.  For 
example between October 2013 and August 2014, CAB debt support clinics funded by 
Caerphilly Homes and the Supporting People programme referred 262 residents for 
debt support which led to the identification of £2.53m debt (average of £9,565 per 
person).  In 2015/16 we visited council tenants in their home to provide support and 
advice and the savings generated as a direct result of face to face support was nearly 
£500,000.  In this way we are working towards prevention of poverty, wherever 
possible.   
* Trussel Trust year end figures for 15/16 @ trusseltrust.org.uk  

 
This well being objective supports Welsh Government’s own Well-being Objective 
number 4: To improve prosperity for all across Wales, helping people into employment 
and sustaining jobs 
 
Links to the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 –Well-being Goals 
 
By addressing each of these categories collectively and on their own merit, we are able 
to show contributions to the following wider National Goals: 

 

 
 

 

 
Page 26



 

 

6 

 

PAGE 6 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 
To deliver this objective our actions for this year are:  
 

From our Anti-poverty Strategy the work detailed in the section called ‘Pockets, of 
which the key areas of focus are: 

 Providing residents with information and advice on a range of social welfare issues 
to enable them to increase household income manage debt and develop skills to 
improve their financial capability. 

 Supporting council tenants to reduce the impacts of rising fuel costs. The impacts 
of this advice will be captured during follow up visits with a selection of the 
tenants. 

 Promoting quality, accessible and affordable childcare provision to enable families 
to improve their income through accessing education, learning and employment.  

 Ensuring all pupils eligible for Free School Meals are in receipt of their entitlement. 
 

How we will review our progress 
 

We will a range of performance measures to monitor progress including:  
• The number of people supported to access the benefits they are entitled to along 

with the number of residents visited and provided with advice regarding energy 
saving. 

• Increase Credit Union membership. 
• The amount of savings generated for residents through increased income or 

reduced savings increases. 
• The increases in the number of children accessing childcare places through Flying 

Start Childcare and the Assisted Places Scheme and an increased in the take up of 
Free School Meals for eligible pupils. 

 

There is an Anti-Poverty Board (with members and partners) that monitor the progress 
of the strategy.  Additionally this objective is monitored by our members at Scrutiny and 
Cabinet (these documents are publically available) and at the end of the year by our 
Public Annual Performance Report.   
 

Resources to deliver 
 

We do not have a dedicated budget within our organisation to address poverty so we 
are working with other areas and organisations to pool our resources to address the 
issues.  For example, we sign post citizens to a range of help and support that maybe 
provided by other organisations or purchase services from the voluntary sector such as 
the Citizen’s Advice to help citizens manage their finances, particularly help with debt 
support.   We have developed an Anti-Poverty Strategy in partnership with a range of 
partners based on the 4 pillars of ‘Prospects, Pockets, Places and Prevention’. The 
partnership helps to share the resource of delivering improvements. The strategy 
identifies areas that will be important to tackle; welfare, work, education, the cost of 
living, family, community and addressing complex needs emerging as crucial areas of 
focus. 

Page 27



 

 

7 

 

PAGE 7 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 
 

2. Improve Outcomes for all learners, particularly those vulnerable to 
underachievement  

 
Our Well-being Objective is to: Improve outcomes for all learners but we want to particularly 
focus on those vulnerable to underachievement. 
 

   
 

Why we chose this 
This objective aims to address the gap in attainment between vulnerable young people 
and children and those who are to receive the best education in trying to promote more 
equal opportunities by removing barriers specific to this group of our citizens. 

As a local authority our aim is that “every child should have the best start in life, and the 
opportunity to achieve success as a young person and as an adult”. In achieving this we 
recognise that small groups of children and young people can face more challenges than 
others. We aim to identify groups of learners that are vulnerable to underachievement 
academically, and work proactively to remove the barriers to learning to raise their 
aspirations and increase their opportunities to succeed.   

Vulnerability in education can be determined by a number of different factors including 
deprivation. It can also be determined by whether the child or young person has an 
additional learning need, or is a looked after child.  Our data identifies that there is 
performance gap between those within these groups and that of the overall population.   

We have chosen to undertake some intensive work in this area to try and reduce that 
gap, and ensure that all young people are provided with appropriate opportunities to 
help them achieve success, both in the classroom and beyond.  

We have set this in accordance with the 5 sustainable development principles because 
we know that long term education improvements and its wide range of support 
initiatives helps young people towards a better quality of life and this starts at an early 
age.  Initiatives can take time to embed, however we are often judged on yearly results 
and it is important that improved performance is viewed in the understanding of better 
life chances for young people if this is to be understood in the longer term.     

We take an integrated approach with schools and governors and the Education 
Achievement Service (EAS), we also have an extensive Youth Forum with which to involve 
and collaborate, who are themselves part of education system as well as systems for 

Page 28



 

 

8 

 

PAGE 8 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 
school involvement.  The EAS and our schools are key partners in working towards 
improved outcomes for our pupils. However, when we look at causes of 
underachievement, we know that aspirations are often linked to family background and 
that there are links between poverty, deprivation and lower achievement.  Therefore in 
order to prevent underachievement we must work with communities and key agencies 
who work with families such as Flying Start, Families First, Communities First and other 
key partners.    

This objective contributes to the Welsh Governments own current Well-being objectives:   

1. Create conditions to give every child the best start in life, 2. Improve education 
outcomes for all and reduce the gap in outcomes for different groups. 

Links to the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 – Well-being Goals 

This focus on improving outcomes for learners maximises the contribution to all of the 

wider Well-being Goals noted below:  

 

To deliver this objective our actions for this year are:  

 To work in partnership with the Education Achievement Service (EAS) to ensure 

that challenging targets are set for all learners, particularly those vulnerable to 

underachievement. 

 Work with schools to maximise the benefits of the Pupil Deprivation Grant and 

Implement strategies to work towards closing the gap in performance between 

those in receipt of Free School Meals, and those who are not.   

 Monitor and evaluate the newly introduced assessment for pupils educated in 

Trinity Fields and Local authority resource bases (PIVATS). 

 Monitor and evaluate the multi agency strategy to provide improved learning                          

opportunities in the St James area.  

Page 29



 

 

9 

 

PAGE 9 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 
 

The actions identified in this plan and further detail will be highlighted in the strategic 
annual service plans and operational service delivery plans, and communicated to the 
regional Educational Achievement Service (EAS).   

How we will review our progress   

Future ESTYN inspections and reviews will monitor the progress made in improving 
outcomes for our children and young people through the strategies, services and 
initiatives that we deliver.  

We use considerable attainment data and targets to monitor our overall progress as 
well as use of the new methods for evaluating at an individual level.  There are many 
factors which increase levels of vulnerability in learners, one of which is deprivation. The 
measure that is commonly used to measure deprivation is a pupil’s eligibility to receive 
Free School Meals.  The data provides an insight into the performance of all pupils in 
comparison to the pupils in receipt of Free School Meals. This also highlights that the 
gap in performance increases throughout school life. 

We have a service plan, action plan and an online system for monitoring our data.  The 
Objective will be monitored and discussed with our councillors at Scrutiny and at 
Cabinet and progress will be published to the public in the Councils Annual Performance 
Report.  

Resources to deliver 

This objective is initially focused on aligning existing resources to provide targeted 
support in areas of need.  The Welsh Government pilot initiative of Children Zones is 
being considered as a model for re-focussing the multi agency work in St James and 
Fochriw areas and evaluating existing partnership working and community engagement.   

The aim is to maximise use of existing funding streams and community resources to 
explore how we can work differently to improve outcomes for the communities, 
including our most vulnerable children and young people, as well as develop a model 
which could effectively and efficiently be developed in other areas. 

  

Page 30



 

 

10 

 

PAGE 10 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 
3. Close the gap in life expectancy for residents between the most and 

least deprived areas in the borough  

 

Our Well-being Objective is focused on: promoting the benefits of an active and 

healthy lifestyle.   

Why we chose this 

The main intention of this priority is to improve the lifestyles of our local population so 
that people recognise and take responsibility for their own health and well being. In turn 
this will reduce the variation in healthy life expectancy so that health and well being of 
individuals experiencing disadvantage improves to the levels found among the more 
advantaged. 

The CCBC vision is that Caerphilly County Borough is a better place to live, work and visit. 
This must be for all residents. This is a long term aim as residents living in areas of high 
deprivation have statistically significantly higher levels of ill-health including deaths from 
chronic obstructive pulmonary disease, deaths from lung cancer, diabetes, mental illness 
and respiratory disease. 

Data released from Public Health Wales (2011) covering the years 2001-2005 and 2005-
2009 showed health inequalities across the county borough that were alarming.  Recent 
data released in 2016 (below) shows an improving picture but we still have health 
inequalities that are harmful to our residents.  

 
 
 

The gap in years in the life expectancy and healthy life expectancy at birth of males 
between the most and least deprived in the county has reduced. The healthy life 
expectancy gap in males reduced from 18.6 years to 13 years.  For females, the gap in 

Page 31



 

 

11 

 

PAGE 11 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 
overall life expectancy has increased by 0.2 years; however the gap in years for healthy 
life expectancy has reduced by 1.6 years.    
 
Unhealthy lifestyle choices are significantly higher in more deprived areas and this creates 
risk factors that could impact upon the health of our residents especially smoking, 
obesity, physical inactivity and unhealthy diet. It is a priority of Welsh Government (Fairer 
Outcomes for All 2011) that by 2020 we need to improve healthy life expectancy for 
everyone and close the gap between each level of deprivation by an average of 2.5%. 
There are 5 levels in total, 1 being the most affluent and 5 being the most deprived. 

Due to the complexities and the different causes and effects we have to involve and 
collaborate with a range of partners in delivering this objective.  We are taking an 
integrated approach to ensure all partners work towards the same outcomes in a joined 
up process to benefit the individual.  Activities are not just seeking to improve life 
expectancy for residents in the borough but to prevent the situation declining as shown 
from our data.  

This contributes to the Welsh Government’s own Well-being Goals of: 

1. Create conditions to give every child the best start in life, 3. Help people live healthy 
and independent lives and support a healthy workforce 12. Manage, use and enhance 
Wales natural resources to support long term well being and 13. Facilitate high quality 
responsive and better integrated public services to those that need them most, enabling 
citizens to be an equal partner.  

Links to the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 –Well-being Goals 

This focus on improving maximises the contribution to all of the wider Well-being Goals 

noted below:  

 
 

Page 32



 

 

12 

 

PAGE 12 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 
To deliver this objective our actions for this year are:  

 Further reduce smoking prevalence rates. 
 Improve the proportion of adults and children who are a healthy weight. 
 Support Aneurin Bevan University Health Board and Public Health Wales to 

implement the Living Well Living longer programme (LWLL) across the County 
Borough. 
 Increase residents knowledge in health literacy. 
 Respond to the key issues identified in the Caerphilly Public Services Board’s      
Well-being Assessment 2017. 

 
How we will review our progress   

Data from the Welsh Health Survey (Welsh Government) and Public Health Wales will 
provide evidence to show if our residents’ health is improving. Often health data can be 
complex and trends can take 2-5 years to show.  

This objective will have a range of measures and be monitored at least every 6 months. A 
report will be provided to the Council’s Scrutiny Committees and Cabinet members.  We 
also publish the performance results in our Public Annual Performance Report.  We make 
people aware of the annual report online and through social media and by ‘Newsline’ the 
Council’s paper which is sent to all homes in the borough.    

Resources to deliver 

Resources within this arena have been significantly reduced over the past few years. 
This is impacting on the availability of funds and the capacity to deliver. Welsh 
Government have recently announced a review of the Communities First programme to 
establish a new approach to meet the challenges of the future. The new approach will 
focus on three key areas of employment, early years and empowerment. Caerphilly 
Communities First are significant planning and delivery partners for this Well Being 
Objective as well as the Healthier Theme of the Caerphilly Single Integrated Plan. 

By May 2018, Caerphilly Public Services Board must publish its new Well-being Plan (this 
will replace the Single Integrated Plan).  The Local Assessment of Well-being (noted in 
the leaders foreword)  which is currently out for consultation, identifies a number of key 
issues that the Public Services Board and partners will need to address, to improve 
wellbeing across the county borough and develop the ‘Caerphilly We Want’ over the 
next 25 years. Consideration needs to be given to the importance of health inequalities 
within this process and current resources. The Community Health Champions scheme is 
currently under review to examine relevancy and the capacity/resources to continue to 
deliver this initiative. 

 

 

Page 33



 

 

13 

 

PAGE 13 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 

4. Carbon Management:  Reduce our carbon footprint 

 

Our Well-being Objective is, to take steps to reduce the Authority’s Carbon Footprint 

and inform and assist others within the borough to do the same.     

 

  
 

Why we chose this 
 

Our climate is undergoing changes as the direct result of green-house gas (GHG) 
emissions from human activity. One of the most prevalent GHG’s is Carbon dioxide 
(CO2) which is emitted mostly, from the burning of fossil fuels like coal, oil and natural 
gas.  The UK Government has committed to take action on reducing carbon emissions 
and has introduced the Climate Change Act (2008). This is further supported by the 
Welsh Government Climate Change Strategy 2010 and the Environment (Wales) Act 
2016. 
 
Caerphilly County Borough Council (CCBC) has an annual carbon emission in excess of 
26,000 tonnes which is a relatively large carbon footprint. We have an obligation to take 
steps to reduce and minimise our carbon emissions and strongly consider the associated 
negative impact on our environment.  This objective has been set within the sustainable 
development principles as long term and our carbon reduction actions extend to 2050 
with some ‘invest to save’ schemes having a payback under 10 years but a technology 
lifespan of up to 30 years.     
 
We are taking an integrated and collaborative approach by sharing knowledge and 
good practice and carrying out a wide range of training and awareness so that people 
know how to best use the technologies and practices available to the best effect.   
 
We rely on and involve all employees, pupils and residents to contribute to the goal of 
carbon reduction as they directly influence the levels of carbon emitted within the 
borough.  We also work Carbon Management Advisory Organisations, Utility Suppliers 
and Resource Efficient Wales (who replaced the Carbon Trust).   
 
All our proposals for improvement have to be justified and validated and show we 
understand the causes in order to access funds not just to prevent but to improve 
carbon emissions levels.  
 
 
 

Page 34



 

 

14 

 

PAGE 14 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 
This objective contributes to the Welsh Government own current objective, 
6. Support the transition to a low carbon and climate resilient society’.   
 
Links to the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 –Well-being Goals 
 
CCBC focusses on 4 key categories to drive down energy consumption and reduce 
carbon emissions.  They are: 
• Good Housekeeping. 
• Invest-to-save. 
• Design and Asset Management. 
• Renewable Technologies. 
 
By addressing each of these elements collectively and on their own merit, we are able to 
show contributions to the following wider Well-being Goals: 
 

 
 

To deliver this objective our actions for this year are:  
 

 Raise awareness and understanding of carbon management and improve control 
through; advisory, education, training, guidance, skills and operational activities.   

 Better controlled use of our facilities through; asset rationalisation (property stock), 
energy and utility audits, and the feasibility of further technology investments (for 
maintenance, improvements, controls) to our property portfolio.     

 Feasibility study and piloting of integrating Electric/Hybrid vehicles into parts of our 
vehicle fleet. 

 
How we will review our progress 
 
The overall governance, monitoring and control will be through our Cabinet, Scrutiny 
and the Corporate Management Team.  Progress will be reported routinely to our 

Page 35



 

 

15 

 

PAGE 15 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 
Members in their formal scrutiny capacity which is made publically available, and at the 
end of the year in our Annual Performance Report.   

 
Resources to deliver 

 
We will select and use specialist staff, contractors, suppliers and areas of financial draw 
down, in accordance with the needs being addressed and availability at the appropriate 
times.  The authority has used internal finance, justified by business cases for carbon 
improvement projects.   
 
However, the long standing vehicle for carbon improvement projects has been *SALIX 
funding, which is an ‘Invest to save’ scheme. The scheme introduces energy efficient 
technologies to reduce carbon emissions.  We also consider opportunities that could be 
available from other external funding streams, to identify further opportunities to make 
carbon management improvements for our organisation, including schools, that 
benefits our environment, citizens and service providers/users.  
 
 
*SALIX Finance; is an external organisation, which administers finance on behalf of 
Central Government.  For CCBC, there is a specialised funding pot, established since 
September 2004, whereby, Salix provide £200k government funding and CCBC have 
provided £500k.  This funding mechanism is used as a loan system across all non-

domestic properties to implement energy efficient technologies. Repayment is achieved 
via savings made from the investments. 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

Page 36



 

 

16 

 

PAGE 16 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 
 

5. Investment in Council homes to transform lives and communities 

 
 

Our Well-being Objective is, to take steps to ensure the physical standard and 
condition of our housing stock, be improved and maintained to the Welsh Housing 
Quality Standard (WHQS), helping to improve the quality of life for the people who 
live in those homes.  
 
Why we chose this 
 

The long-term affordability of housing, effects of low incomes, fuel poverty and 
improving the quality of housing in the social sectors, are some of the main challenges 
facing the county borough.  Council homes across our county borough will require over 
£200 million investment to meet the Welsh Housing Quality Standard (WHQS) 
programme by 2020.   In 2012 Council tenants took part in a ballot to have their say 
about the future management of their homes and they voted to remain with the Council 
as their landlord.  
 
We are taking an involved, integrated and collaborative approach by delivering this 
improvement programme on a community by community basis.  Every Council home is 
surveyed to establish the extent of internal and external work required, type of works to 
be delivered, products and workforce used, and timeliness of delivery.  We have 
established a ‘Caerphilly Homes Task Group’ with 7 councillors and 7 tenant 
representatives, who periodically meet and discuss progress within the WHQS and the 
improvements to the housing service. The Task Group, is informed by a ‘Tenant’s 
Repairs and Improvements Group’. 
 
Due to the scale of this programme, it will be a substantial boost to the local economy. 
The money spent improving homes, should be a catalyst to wider regeneration, 
improving lives and communities.  The main intention, other than improving homes, is 
to prevent further deterioration in the housing stock, which can adversely affect the 
health and quality of life of the tenants.  
 
This objective also contributes to the Welsh Government’s own current objectives: 
7. Connect Communities through sustainable and resilient infrastructure and  
9. Improve access to secure, safe, efficient and affordable homes.    
 
 
 
 
 
 

Page 37



 

 

17 

 

PAGE 17 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 
Links to the Well-being of Future Generations (Wales) Act 2015 –Well-being Goals 
 

Between now and 2020 (the Welsh Government target) we want our communities to 
know:  
 
• We delivered the best quality home improvements to our tenants.  
• We did it with them and not to them.  
• Their homes created real jobs in our communities.  
• We delivered the whole project on time and in budget.  
 
By addressing each of these items, we are able to show contributions to the following 
wider Well-being Goals: 
 

 
 
 

To deliver this objective our actions for this year are:  
 
Through continued delivery of a capital investment programme, pursuit of external 
funding to support energy improvement opportunities, delivery of sensitive adaptations, 
adhering to standards, working closely with our tenants, working groups, contractors 
and suppliers, we will strive to make Caerphilly Homes be; 
 

 In a good state of repair. 
 Safe and secure.  
 Adequately heated, fuel efficient and well insulated.  
 Fitted with up-to-date kitchens and bathrooms.  
 Well managed (for rented housing).  
 Located in attractive and safe environments. 
 Suitable to meet the specific requirements of the household (as far as reasonable 

and practicably possible). For example, catering for specific disabilities. 
 

Page 38



 

 

18 

 

PAGE 18 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 
 
How we will review our progress 
 
The overall governance, monitoring and control will be through our Cabinet, Scrutiny 
and the Corporate Management Team.  Progress will be reported routinely to our 
Members in their formal scrutiny capacity which is made publically available, and at the 
end of the year in our Annual Performance Report.   
 
Progress is constantly monitored by a dedicated internal workforce, as well as by our 
contractors, the ‘Caerphilly Homes Task Group’, and ‘Tenant’s Repairs and 
Improvements Group’. 
 
There are three key measures that will be used to review progress are 

 How quickly we do internal home improvements 

 How quickly we carry out external home improvements 

 The tenant satisfaction levels of works done. 
 
Resources to deliver 
 
The Welsh Government and the Council has committed to an investment programme of 
£200 million to meet the WHQS standards by 2020. We also monitor the wider market 
place in pursuit of external funding to support energy improvement opportunities (for 
example through the Utility Suppliers). 
 
The capacity to meet commitment is under constant review in order to respond to ever 
changing circumstances and the delivery of the necessary changes and improvements 
are, and will be, subject to certain physical resource constraints and at the mercy of 
wider market influences, such as the availability of high quality efficient tradesmen and 
contractors, access to homes, delivery of quality installation and repair products and 
technologies.  
 
Further information regarding “The Welsh Housing Quality Standard” can be found in 
the revised guidance for the social landlords on interpretation and achievement of 
WHQS July 2008, or by access to the Welsh Government website: Welsh Government, 
Welsh Housing Quality Standard. 

 
 

http://wales.gov.uk/topics/housing-and-regeneration/housing-quality/welsh-
standard/?lang=en 

 
 
 
 
 

Page 39



 

 

19 

 

PAGE 19 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017  
 
Our 2013-17 Corporate Priorities  
 

These were set up in 2013 and are now coming to the end of their monitoring period.  
We report progress every year against our medium term priorities and will report for 
the last time in October of this year in our annual report.   
 

CP1 Peoples social care needs are identified and met in timely and  appropriate 
way. This priority focuses on improving the speed byf which we make 
assessments so the client gets a quicker service and that the quality remains high. 
We want to improve the quality of standards of care. 

 
CP2 Children and Adults are safeguarded from abuse. Our commitment is to prevent 

abuse to vulnerable children and adults within the community with quick, 
effective responses and to work with other agencies to train, support and 
campaign to raise awareness and improve all areas of co-ordinated working  

 
CP3 Improve standards across all year groups particularly key stages 2 & 3. 

Performance of pupils improve and particularly those of vulnerable groups.  We 
want to raise the literacy levels for all and particularly for year 4 pupils. We want 
the gap between girls and boys achievements to narrow.  

 
CP4 Identify vulnerable groups of  learners and develop interventions to ensure 

needs are met. This is also one of our well-being objectives for 2017/18, The 
priority focuses on reducing the number of young people leaving education, 
training or work based learning without an approved qualification. 

 
CP5 Reduce the gap in attainment  between pupils in advantage and dis-advantaged 

communities. To raise attendance levels and developing an outreach service for 
those in isolated communities. 

 
CP6 Promote the benefits of an active and healthy lifestyle. Success in this priority is 

to reduce the harm caused by alcohol, increase physical activity, reduce smoking 
and promote healthy eating.  We also want to support intergeneration schemes. 

 
CP7 Invest in our council homes and their communities to transform lives. 

Rebuilding and refurbishing Council homes so they meet the Welsh Housing 
Quality standard by 2020. 

 
CP8 Affordability - To deliver the medium term financial plan, aimed at providing a 

period of stability that helps the Authority to have arrange of services in the 
future that are sustainable. We said we want to achieve a balanced budget by 
implementing savings proposals at the start of the financial year.   

Page 40



 

 

20 

 

PAGE 20 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017  

Which Well-being Goals do our priorities and objectives make the most contribute to? 

Our Corporate Priorities and Well-being Objectives  1 2 3 4 5 6 7 

CP 
Peoples social care needs are identified and met in               

timely and appropriate Way. 

              

CP Children and Adults are safeguarded from abuse. 
              

CP 
Improve standards across all year groups particularly key 

stages 2 & 3 

              

CP 
Identify vulnerable groups of learners and develop                        

interventions to ensure needs are met.  

              

CP 
Reduce the gap in attainment between pupils in                          

advantage and dis-advantaged communities. 

              

CP Promote the benefits of an active and healthy lifestyle. 
              

CP 
Invest in our council homes and their communities to                   

transform lives. 

              

CP 

Affordability - To deliver the medium term financial plan, 

aimed at providing a period of stability that helps the                      

Authority to have arrange of services in the future that 

are sustainable.  

              

WO1 
To help people make the best use of their household              

income and manage their debts.  

              

WO2 
Improve outcomes for all learners, particularly those                

vulnerable to underachievement  

              

WO3 
Close the gap in life expectancy for residents between 

the most and least deprived areas in the Borough. 

              

WO4 Carbon Management - Reduce our carbon footprint               

WO5 
Investment in Council homes to transform lives and          

communities.  

              

Page 41



 

 

21 

 

PAGE 21 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 
 

 
Description of what the National Goals mean?   
 

Goal Description of the goal 

A prosperous 
Wales 

An innovative, productive and low carbon society which recognises 
the limits of the global environment and therefore uses resources 
efficiently and proportionately (including acting on climate change); 
and which develops a skilled and well-educated population in an 
economy which generates wealth and provides employment 
opportunities, allowing people to take advantage of the wealth 
generated through securing decent work. 

A resilient Wales 

A nation which maintains and enhances a biodiverse natural 
environment with healthy functioning ecosystems that support 
social, economic and ecological resilience and the capacity to adapt 
to change (for example climate change). 

A healthier Wales 
A society in which people's physical and mental well-being is 
maximised and in which choices and behaviours that benefit future 
health are understood. 

A more equal 
Wales 

A society that enables people to fulfil their potential no matter what 
their background or circumstances (including their socio economic 
background and circumstances). 

A Wales of 
cohesive 
communities 

Attractive, viable, safe and well-connected communities. 

A Wales of 
vibrant culture 
and thriving 
Welsh language 

A society that promotes and protects culture, heritage and the 
Welsh language, and which encourages people to participate in the 
arts, and sports and recreation. 

A globally 
responsible 
Wales 

A globally responsible Wales. A nation which, when doing anything 
to improve the economic, social, environmental and cultural well-
being of Wales, takes account of whether doing such a thing may 
make a positive contribution to global well-being. 

 

 
Page 42



 

 

22 

 

PAGE 22 WELL-BEING OBJECTIVES 2017 
 

 

How to contact us 

Your views and opinions on the content of our plans and the priorities that we set each 

year are important to us. We welcome your input so that we can continue to provide 

meaningful information that helps inform you of the service focus, ensuring that we 

are working on the things that are important to making a difference to you, our citizens 

and our communities. 

  

Please contact us by: Email: PMU@caerphilly.gov.uk OR by Web                                            

link: Council Performance and follow the 

instructions on screen:  

  

Alternatively, please contact: 

 

Ros Roberts 

 

Performance Manager 

Corporate Performance Management Unit 

Caerphilly County Borough Council 

Penallta House 

Ystrad Mynach 

Hengoed CF82 7PG 

        

Tel: 01443 864238    

E-mail: roberr@caerphilly.gov.uk 

   

This document is also available in different languages and formats upon request. 

Further information can also be found on our website: www.caerphilly.gov. 

 

 

 

Page 43

mailto:PMU@caerphilly.gov.uk
https://www.caerphilly.gov.uk/contact-us/General-enquiries/Performance-Management-Unit.aspx


This page is intentionally left blank

Page 44


	Agenda
	3 Special Cabinet held on 31st January 2017.
	4 Cabinet held on 15th February 2017.
	Cabinet Minutes 15 February 2017
	CABINET
	MINUTES OF THE MEETING HELD AT penallta house, tredomen
	ON WEDNESDAY, 15TH FEBRUARY 2017 AT 2.00 p.m.
	1. APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE
	2. DECLARATIONS OF INTEREST
	3. CABINET – 1ST FEBRUARY 2017
	MATTERS ON WHICH EXECUTIVE DECISIONS WERE REQUIRED
	4. Carbon reduction initiatives capital allocation
	5. SCRAP METAL DEALERS AND DOG BREEDERS LICENSING FEES 2017/18
	6. “BUSINESS ENTERPRISE & INNOVATION” PROJECT – REGIONAL APPLICATION FOR EU STRUCTURAL & INVESTMENT FUNDS EFDF PRIORITY 4 OBJECTIVE 4
	RECOMMENDATION TO COUNCIL
	7. BUDGET PROPOSALS 2017/18 AND MEDIUM-TERM FINANCIAL STRATEGY 2017/2022


	5 Junior and Youth Forum Priorities 2017.
	6 Well Being Objectives 2017/18.
	Well-Being Objectives 2017-18
	Cabinet - 1ST March 2017
	SUBJECT: Well being objectives 2017/18
	REPORT BY: corporate director, social services
	1. PURPOSE OF REPORT
	2. SUMMARY
	7. FINANCIAL IMPLICATIONS
	8. PERSONNEL IMPLICATIONS
	9. CONSULTATIONS
	10. RECOMMENDATIONS
	11. REASONS FOR THE RECOMMENDATIONS
	12. STATUTORY POWER
	Appendices:


	Well-Being Objectives 2017-18 Appendix


